

## Association of Environmental & Engineering Geologists

P.O. Box 460518 Denver, Colorado 80246

Phone: 303-757-2926 FAX: 303-757-2969

## ASSOCIATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL & ENGINEERING GEOLOGISTS (AEG)

Board of Directors Meeting Summary

The Association of Environmental & Engineering Geologists (AEG) Directors convene meetings biannually to review the status and conduct the business of our organization. On September 26<sup>th</sup> and 27<sup>th</sup>, 2009, the Board of Directors (BOD) Meeting was held in Stateline, Nevada, the site of the AEG Annual Meeting. Detailed meeting minutes were prepared and will be provided for BOD acceptance at the next Mid Year Board Meeting, which will take place in St. Louis, Missouri, on May 1<sup>st</sup> and 2<sup>nd</sup>, 2010. The following summary was prepared to assist our Directors in highlighting major issues and topic areas for communication to the general membership. Each Director is invited to report those items that most pertain to their Section.

The AEG's Board of Directors (BOD) is comprised of the twenty-five (25) Section representatives and five (5) Executive Council members, totaling thirty (30) Directors. Twenty (20) Section Chairpersons or their proxies were present along with the Executive Council (EC): President Kreuger, Vice President/President-Elect Hilton, Treasurer Bauer, Secretary Morris, and Past-President Molinari, achieving the required majority present for a quorum. Chief Operating Officer Roland was also present, as were Governance Committee Chair Andrews, Finance Committee Chair Bieber, Strategic Planning Committee Chair Hale, Communications Committee Chair Shaw and other invited guests. Sections absent were New England, New York-Philadelphia, Montreal, Lower Mississippi Valley and South Africa.

- President Kreuger discussed his planned Section visits for the coming year and informed the Board that he would welcome invitations to visit Sections and Chapters. He plans to present on a topic related to Environmental Geology.
- Vice President Hilton discussed his planned involvement in coordinating the efforts of the
  existing operating committees (Strategic Planning, Governance, Section/Chapter
  Support, Advocacy, Students/Young Professionals, Licensure and Website). In addition,
  Vice President Hilton will oversee the formation of three new operating committees
  (Continuing Education, Education, and Advertising).
- The BOD voted to accept the auditor's report prepared by Anton, Collins, Mitchell, LLP for the Financial Statements, year ending June 30, 2008. Vice President Hilton noted that the Treasurer's Reserve Account has performed better than the index markets (DJIA and SP500), down only 12%. The account is also rebounding at a rate of approximately 8%, and continued growth is expected based on our conservative investment strategy which is consistent with prior BOD direction. The BOD also provided direction to reallocate approximately \$50,000 of cash held in the Treasurers Reserve to the Money Market Account.
- Vice President Hilton reported that AEG is currently operating at a \$26,000 surplus through the second quarter of 2009. This is based on AEG taking in approximately \$12,000 of additional revenue and expending \$14,000 less than budgeted.

- The 2009 Annual Meeting in South Lake Tahoe generated a surplus in excess of \$50,000. The final Annual Meeting Report will be presented at the next Board Meeting, held in May 2010.
- Chief Operating Officer Roland reported that AEG membership is down approximately 10% from 2008. In order to recruit new members and invigorate the membership, a membership drive is underway. The top two AEG members that recruit the most new members by the end of the year will receive a free round trip ticket on Alaska Airways or a free round trip ticket on Southwest Airlines, respectively. These two round trip tickets were donated by current AEG members in an effort to support the membership drive.
- AEG will focus on sponsors and exhibitors for next year. Exhibitors that commit to the 2010 Annual Meeting by the end of October 2009 will receive a \$100 discount.
- The AEG Special Publication "Living with Unstable Ground" is available for purchase and sale at the Section level. Contact COO Roland for more information.
- AEG will focus on retaining and recruiting sponsors and exhibitors for next year. 2009
   Annual Meeting Exhibitors were contacted by CEO at the meeting and notified that if they commit to the 2010 Annual Meeting by the end of October 2009, they will receive a \$100 discount.
- AEG is looking for volunteers to staff the AEG booth at Geological Society of America (GSA) Conference in Portland, Oregon.
- Past President Molinari discussed his activities from the previous year. Key highlights
  were visits to Sections, Chapters, and Student Chapters, representing AEG at the GSA
  and ARMA Annual Meetings, and participating in two AGI Congressional Visit Days and
  associated meetings. He encouraged AEG members to participate in the AGI
  Congressional Visits. AEG is able to provide some funds to support member travel to
  Washington D.C.
- AEG Foundation BOD Member, Bob Tepel, presented the AEG Foundation Report. Key developments within the Foundation include:
  - The establishment of the new Beardsley-Kuper Fund that provides Scholarships for students attending summer field camps.
  - Goals of the Foundation for the coming year are to increase the percentage of the AEG Membership donating to the foundation; build sustainable funding; and expand planned giving.
  - The Foundation and AEG presented six Lemke Awards to students presenting research at the Annual Meeting.
- The BOD voted to remove the permanent restriction from the original donation made to establish the Marliave Fund. This was done at the request of the AEG Foundation Board to lessen the financial burden from additional reporting and accounting required for restricted funds.
- The BOD approved nominating Scott Burns for International Association of Engineering Geologists (IAEG) President in 2010.
- AEG supports Engineers Without Borders (EWB) and encourages members to contact EWB at the local Chapter level to learn about opportunities: www.ewb-usa.com.

- President Kreuger requested that names of potential members for the Executive Council be sent to Past President Molinari, Chair of the Nominations Committee.
- Advocacy Committee Chair Rick Kolb suggested the creation of an Outstanding Section Newsletter Award. He will begin work on a formal proposal and criteria to be presented at the 2010 Mid-Year BOD meeting.
- The Advertising and Exhibitors Committee is newly formed and will be appointing Chairs in the coming weeks.
- The Continuing Education Committee is newly formed and will be appointing Chairs in the coming weeks.
- A new Ad-Hoc Education Committee is newly formed and will be chaired by Keith Turner.
  This committee will focus on creating a Bodies of Knowledge Document for the Applied
  Geosciences. This Committee will most likely change their name to avoid confusion with
  the Continuing Education Committee.
- Strategic Planning Chair Paul Hale presented the Strategic Planning Report and informed the BOD that the focus of the Committee will be on completing individual projects in order to keep volunteers engaged and involved in the projects in which they are most interested.
- The BOD voted to approve and support the new Strategic Plan, available on the AEG Website. Members are encouraged to contact Paul Hale (<a href="mailto:phale@gfnet.com">phale@gfnet.com</a>) if they are interested in volunteering to complete the goals of the plan.
- The Annual Meeting Committee will be focusing on expansion, including members of past and future Annual Meeting Planning Committees.
- Website Committee Chair Dale Andrews presented a mock-up of the new website and emphasized that the goal of the new website will be to streamline the information transfer process and provide a dynamic tool for the membership. Key features will include discussion forums, enhanced advertising capabilities, current news feeds, and events calendar.
- The Licensure Committee will continue as an Ad-Hoc committee pending the approval of their Charter at a future date. The Licensure Committee is currently Chaired by Charles Nestle. M-SC.
- The Student/Young Professional Support Committee (SYPSC) encouraged all Section Chairs to become members of "New Geologist" Facebook page. The Section Chairs and their members are invited to contact SYPSC if they are interested in participating in the Visiting Professionals Program.
- Section/Chapter Support Committee (S/CSC) Chair Kathy Troost informed the BOD that the Section Officer Handbook is complete and will be provided to Sections for their use. The intent is for the Handbook to be a living document that will be updated continually as Section responsibilities change.
- President Kreuger discussed the progress for the future Annual Meetings.
  - 2010 Charleston, South Carolina Meeting Chair Bridget Doyle provided a PowerPoint presentation of next year's Annual Meeting. The presentation is available to all Section Chairs for use at their meetings this year.
  - 2011 Anchorage, Alaska AEG will be holding monthly conference calls with Meeting Chair Paul Metz to assist with the planning of this meeting.

- 2012 Salt Lake City, Utah The new Hilton Hotel has been chosen as the venue for this meeting.
- 2013 Seattle, Washington The meeting venue has been narrowed to two hotels and the Special Event will most likely be held at the Space Needle.
- Annual Meeting event insurance was discussed.
- Formal Reports for the two Shlemon Conferences held in 2009 will be available shortly and the presentations from the conferences may be posted on-line. The Texas Section submitted a proposal for hosting a Shelmon Conference on Coastal Subsidence.
- AEG will continue work on the application process for the 2018 IAEG meeting. Intentions
  are to propose to host the meeting at a city on or near the West Coast.
- AEG is continuing to work with the Canadian Geotechnical Society to host a future International Landslide Conference.
- Past-President Molinari provided the BOD with an update on the Joint Task Force document that is being prepared by the AEG, the American Institute of Professional Geologists (AIPG), and the American Society of Civil Engineers GeoInstitute (ASCE-GI). Based on the discussion at the forum held on Friday at the Annual Meeting, AEG plans to have further discussion with ASCE GI regarding basing the document on a more comprehensive and consistent Bodies of Knowledge (BOK) considering the existing ASCE (2008) document, existing documents from WA, OR and CA geologist licensing boards (and other states if available), and a draft document prepared by Keith Turner for an international consortium of engineering geology and geotechnical societies. Also plan to discuss whether other entities should be included in the process. If, after this discussion, the joint decision is to proceed with the revision process for the current draft document, then the committee specified by the BOD at the Mid-Year Board Meeting will be tasked with addressing the comments of the Association in a redline version of the draft document to be submitted to ASCE GI and AIPG. No firm revision process or schedule has been jointly determined at this time.
- The BOD approved the allocation of \$10,000 from AEG to the AEG Southern California Political Action Fund for the California Association of Professional Geologists (CAPG) to use in their efforts to ensure that California licensed geologists and the licensing program are supported by a State Board that will provide adequate representation.
- President Kreuger talked about the EC's discussions with the CAPG regarding an AEG in-kind donation of funds to distribute the Call to Action to the California licenses who are not AEG Members, and this effort would include a return envelope for donations. The EC has a spreadsheet of all California licensees, but the EC is not sure how many mailers would go out at this time. The consensus of the BOD was to support this action.
- The BOD approved the new Conflict of Interest Policy and Signature Form. All BOD representatives and Committee members are required to complete the form.
- The BOD approved the new Copyright Policy for all AEG publications and the Website.
- The BOD approved the minutes from the 2009 Mid-Year BOD meeting held in Seattle.
- Treasurer Bauer updated the BOD on the Geology of the Cities of the World Special Publication. The intention is to publish up to 80 papers in an additional volume in electronic format. The Cities Committee will be working with the Communications Committee to establish a protocol for reviewing and publishing papers in the E&EG Journal as well.

- Secretary Morris presented a brief summary of the Electronic Publishing survey results. General consensus is that 70 percent of respondents were in favor of moving the Journal to electronic publishing, 20 percent were opposed, and 10 percent offered no firm opinion. The BOD authorized the Executive Council and Communications Committee to move *Environmental & Engineering Geoscience* to both electronic publishing with the understanding that print copies would be provided to members that request them for the 2010 calendar year.
- Communications Committee Chair Allen Shaw discussed the print media of AEG. He requested that Sections ask their members to submit technical papers or case studies to the Environmental & Engineering Geoscience Journal. There will be several papers in a future issue of the journal by speakers at the Shlemon Specialty Conference on Fault Rupture that was held in Southern California in February 2009. There is also the potential for a Special Publication from the conference proceedings and papers. Shaw would like to increase advertising in the AEG NEWS in order to add more color photos and enhance the quality of the publication.
- The BOD voted to approve the *Environmental & Engineering Geoscience* Editor's Report
- In addition to presenting the Finance Committee report, Finance Committee Chair, David Bieber, reminded the Board of its fiscal responsibilities and how the committee helps to meet those responsibilities. The BOD approved the nomination of James May and John Pfeiffer to the Finance Committee. The BOD also approved the Finance Committee Report as presented.
- During lunch each Section was asked to answer three questions: 1) What is working for your Section? 2) What activities need improvement in your Section? 3) What committee(s) are you on or would you like to be on? Answers will be posted with the minutes of the meeting.
- Treasurer Bauer presented the 2010 AEG Budget, which shows a small surplus. The
  format of the budget categories was reviewed and a brief synopsis of the year to date
  actual financial performance versus budget was discussed. The differences between the
  2009 and proposed 2010 budget were presented. Following the presentation the BOD
  voted to approve the 2010 Budget as presented.
- The BOD voted to accept the Governance Committee (GC) Monitoring Report from the 2009 Mid-Year BOD Meeting in Seattle as presented.
- GC Chair Andrews addressed the topic of Sections using long-term proxies to represent them at BOD meetings. Several Sections that have not regularly attended BOD meetings have expressed interest in this idea and the GC will begin to evaluate the feasible alternatives to complete this task.
- The BOD voted to approve the nomination of Cynthia Palomares and Aubrey "Pete" Henley to the GC.
- The BOD voted to approve the Journalism Award criteria as presented.
- The BOD voted not to approve the Outstanding Environmental and Engineering Geology Award criteria as presented and this will be re-evaluated and a revised criteria presented for approval at the May 2010 BOD meeting.
- COO Roland requested the BOD inform her of individuals in their Sections that would be willing to serve as "Experts" on particular environmental and engineering geology subject

areas. The "Experts" must be available to provide quick responses to requests for information from various media outlets and legislators' staff.

- The BOD voted to approve the formation of the North Carolina State Student Chapter.
- Kathy Troost and Marie Marshall Garsjo led the BOD and guests in the S/CSC workshop.
  The workshop was intended to assist Sections and Chapters in becoming more active
  and productive. The workshop was formatted to allow different Section Chairs to interact
  in Break-Out Groups to discuss strengths and opportunity areas for improvement.
- The new Action Items were discussed with the BOD.
- The BOD supported the idea of conducting an Advertising and Sponsorship workshop at the Mid-Year BOD Meeting.
- The next BOD meeting will be held May 1<sup>st</sup> and 2<sup>nd</sup>, 2010 in St. Louis Missouri.